This is a consolidated copy of the following bylaws:

- 1. Anmore Board of Variance Bylaw No. 464-2009
- 2. Anmore Board of Variance Amendment Bylaw No. 558-2017

This consolidation is prepared for convenience only. Individual copies of the above bylaw may be obtained by contacting village hall at 604-469-9877 or in person.

## VILLAGE OF ANMORE

#### BYLAW NO. 464-2009

A bylaw to establish and set the procedure for a Board of Variance

WHEREAS the Council of the Village of Anmore has adopted a Zoning Bylaw;

**AND WHEREAS** pursuant to the Local Government Act, the Council of the Village of Anmore shall establish by bylaw, a Board of Variance;

**NOW THEREFORE** the Council of the Village of Anmore in open meeting assembled enacts as follows:

#### <u>Citation</u>

1. This bylaw maybe cited as "Anmore Board of Variance Bylaw No. 464-2009".

#### **Definitions**

2. In this bylaw, the following definitions will apply:

"Board" means the Board of Variance

"Council" means the Council of the Village of Anmore

"Hearing" means a Board of Variance meeting;

"**Municipal Hall**" means the Village of Anmore Municipal Hall located at 2697 Sunnyside Road, Anmore, BC V3H 5G9; and

"**Secretary**" means the person appointed as Secretary to the Board of Variance pursuant to this bylaw.

## <u>Establishment</u>

- 3. The Board is established pursuant to the Local Government Act and consists of three people appointed by Council, for a term of three (3) years. Members may be reappointed for further terms. Council May rescind an appointment to the Board at any time.
- 4. The Board is established to hear and determine applications on the grounds and to the extent set out in the Local Government Act.
- 5. Where a member of the Board ceases to hold office, the remaining members will constitute the Board until the appointment of a successor.

### Secretary to the Board

- 6. The Manager of Corporate Services of the Village or their designate shall be Secretary to the Board to fulfill the following duties:
  - (a) receive notices of application and present them to the Board;
  - (b) present applications to the Board;
  - (c) cause notices of applications and Hearings of the Board to be delivered to:
    - (i) the members of the Board as directed by the Board or its Chair;
    - the applicant and affected persons in accordance with Clauses 9, 10 and 11 of this bylaw.
  - (d) prepare agendas of all applications to be considered at a Board Hearing, and mail or otherwise deliver the agendas to each member of the Board at least one week prior to the Hearing;
  - (e) record the decisions of the Board and maintain minutes of Hearings and orders of the Board;
  - (f) ensure that after their adoption by the Board, the Hearing minutes are signed by the Chair and Secretary;
  - (g) notify applicants and staff responsible for Planning and Building Inspections in writing of the decisions of the Board; and
  - (h) maintain a record of the Board Hearing minutes which must be available for public inspection during normal Municipal Hall business hours.

## Application and Fee

7. A person may apply to the Board for a minor variance or an exemption to relieve hardship by submitting the following:

#### AMENDED BY BYLAW NO. 558-2017

- (a) a completed application including:
  - (i) the minor variance or exemption requested;
  - (ii) the grounds of hardship on which the application is brought; and
  - (iii) the address to which all notices for the applicant may be mailed or otherwise delivered;
  - (iv) a site plan, scaled at minimum 1/8 inch per foot, with the location of required setbacks, any easements and retaining walls, and shall include existing and proposed elevations of grade at the building corners and the top and bottom of all retaining walls;
  - (v) front, side and rear yard elevations of the proposed building scaled at minimum 1/4 inch per foot with all applicable elevations of grade; and
  - (vi) a cross section of the site detailing the floors, roofs, garage slab, foundation wall, average grade and roof mid-point elevations
- (b) the required supporting documents specified in the application form; and
- (c) a non-refundable \$500.00 application fee.
- 8. All applications to the Board will be reviewed for comment by designated staff. The Secretary may request applications to furnish further information as may be necessary for the proper understanding of the nature of the application.

#### <u>Notice</u>

- 9. Notice of the hearing of an application to the Board must be mailed by ordinary mail or otherwise delivered no later than 10 calendar days prior to the date of the Hearing to all owners and tenants in occupation of land which is:
  - (a) the subject of the application; and
  - (b) adjacent to the land that is the subject of the application, including those across dedicated rights-of-way and highways.

- 10. The notice referred to in Clause 9 must:
  - (a) state the nature of the application;
  - (b) identify the land that is the subject of the application; and
  - (c) state the time, date and place of the Hearing.
- 11. Any notice pursuant to this Section is deemed to have been validly given if sent by ordinary mail or otherwise delivered to the owners and tenants in occupation of affected lands at such addresses as shown on the last revised assessment roll or at such other addresses as such affected person may specify in writing.

#### **Board Hearing Procedures**

- 12. At the first Hearing of each year the Board must elect one of their members as Chair for a one year period.
- 13. The Chair may appoint a member of the Board as Acting Chair to preside in the Chair's absence either for a single meeting or for a set period of time.
- 14. The Board may annually establish a schedule of Hearings, or hearings may be held at the Call of the Chair.
- 15. The Board may amend the schedule of Hearings by resolution.
- 16. A quorum of the Board is any two (2) members of the Board.
- 17. The Chair of the Board is entitled to vote on all matters coming before the Board.
- 18. Any Board member who abstains from voting is deemed to have voted in favour of the motion.
- 19. All Hearings of the Board are open to the Public.
- 20. The applicant and any other person who believes that their interest in property is affected by the application may make either oral or written submissions, or both, at the Hearing of the application and may be represented by a solicitor or agent.
- 21. The applicant shall be afforded the first opportunity to present his evidence and arguments and thereafter, evidence and arguments shall be presented in such sequence as the Chair may direct, until all parties have been afforded an opportunity to present their evidence and arguments.

#### AMENDED BY BYLAW NO. 558-2017

22. The Village of Anmore, through any of its officers or employees, or by its solicitor, is entitled to be heard as a party attending the hearing

## AMENDED BY BYLAW NO. 558-2017

Sections 22 to 33 were renumbered to sections 23 to 34

- 23. Evidence given at a Hearing of the Board does not need to be under Oath.
- 24. The Board shall not hear oral evidence, except at a regularly constituted Hearing of the subject matter of that evidence.
- 25. Before reaching a decision on an application, the Board may require that further information be supplied by the applicant and may adjourn the Hearing from time to time as the Board deems advisable.
- 26. The Board may view the property affected by the application and surrounding properties. The Board Hearing may be adjourned from time to time and may be reconvened without further notice, provided the time, date and place of reconvening is announced to those present at the time of adjournment, failing which notice of the reconvened hearing must be given in accordance with Clauses 9, 10 and 11 of this bylaw.

## Decision of Board

- 27. At the conclusion of a Hearing, the Board may render its decision or may adjourn the application and render its decision at a subsequent Hearing.
- 28. If the applicant or applicant's solicitor or agent is not present at the Hearing of the application, the Board may grant or deny an order in the absence of such person.
- 29. If an application is granted, the Board may set a time within which the lawful construction must be completed, failing which the exemption granted by the Board shall terminate and the provisions of the applicable bylaw or the Local Government Act, as applicable will apply.
- 30. Each decision of the Board must be mailed or otherwise delivered to the applicant, owners of the subject land; persons who provided written submissions to the Board and to staff responsible for Building Inspections.
- 31. The Secretary will maintain a record of the Board's decisions which must be available for public inspection during normal Municipal Hall business hours.

## <u>Appeals</u>

32. All decisions of the Board are final and may only be appealed to the Supreme Court under the Judicial Review Procedure Act.

# <u>Severability</u>

33. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, subparagraph, clause or phrase.

#### <u>Repeal</u>

34. That "Village of Anmore Board of Variance Bylaw, 1988, No. 7" is hereby repealed in its entirety.

BYLAW NO. 464-2009 AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 558-2017 ADOPTED MARCH 24, 2009 ADOPTED JANUARY 24, 2017